### CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION

HELGA SCHMID

Transcript of an Interview Conducted by

W. Boyd Rayward

at

Vienna, Austria

on

14 June 2000

(With Subsequent Corrections and Additions)

#### CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION Oral History Program FINAL RELEASE FORM

This document contains my understanding and agreement with Chemical Heritage Foundation with respect to my participation in a tape-recorded interview conducted by

W. Boyd Rayward on 14 June 2000 I have read the transcript supplied by Chemical Heritage Foundation.

- 1. The tapes, corrected transcript, photographs, and memorabilia (collectively called the "Work") will be maintained by Chemical Heritage Foundation and made available in accordance with general policies for research and other scholarly purposes.
- 2. I hereby grant, assign, and transfer to Chemical Heritage Foundation all right, title, and interest in the Work, including the literary rights and the copyright, except that I shall retain the right to copy, use, and publish the Work in part or in full until my death.
- 3. The manuscript may be read and the tape(s) heard by scholars approved by Chemical Heritage Foundation subject to the restrictions listed below. The scholar pledges not to quote from, cite, or reproduce by any means this material except with the written permission of Chemical Heritage Foundation.
  - I wish to place the conditions that I have checked below upon the use of this interview. I understand that Chemical Heritage Foundation will enforce my wishes until the time of my death, when any restrictions will be removed.

#### Please check one:

4.

#### No restrictions for access.

**NOTE:** Users citing this interview for purposes of publication are obliged under the terms of the Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program to obtain permission from Chemical Heritage Foundation, Philadelphia, PA.

b.

**Semi-restricted access.** (May view the Work. My permission required to quote, cite, or reproduce.)

c. \_\_\_\_\_

**Restricted access.** (My permission required to view the Work, quote, cite, or reproduce.)

This constitutes my entire and complete understanding.

(Signature) <u>*(*</u> Helga Schmid

(Date)

This interview has been designated as Free Access.

One may view, quote from, cite, or reproduce the oral history with the permission of CHF.

*Please note*: Users citing this interview for purposes of publication are obliged under the terms of the Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program to credit CHF using the format below:

Helga Schmid, interview by W. Boyd Rayward at Vienna, Austria, 14 June 2000 (Philadelphia: Chemical Heritage Foundation, Oral History Transcript # 0207).



Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program 315 Chestnut Street Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106



The Chemical Heritage Foundation (CHF) serves the community of the chemical and molecular sciences, and the wider public, by treasuring the past, educating the present, and inspiring the future. CHF maintains a world-class collection of materials that document the history and heritage of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; encourages research in CHF collections; and carries out a program of outreach and interpretation in order to advance an understanding of the role of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries in shaping society.

### HELGA SCHMID

1941	Born in Marburg/Lahn, Germany, on 15 June
Education	
1959-1964 1964	Studies of mathematics and physics, Vienna University Ph.D., mathematics, Vienna University
	Professional Experience
1966-1968 1966-1969	European Atomic Energy Community [Euratom], Belgium Post-doctorate Fellowship Scientific Programmer
1969-1975	International Atomic Energy Agency [IAEA] Programmer/Analyst for INIS
1975-1981 1981-2000	Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations [FAO], Vienna Programmer/Analyst for AGRIS Head of AGRIS Processing

#### ABSTRACT

Helga Schmid begins the interview by discussing the growth of her interest in the world of information. While attending the Vienna University, she studied mathematics and physics and also worked on gaining her teaching certification. However, after meeting her husband, she relocated to Belgium and worked for Euratom [European Atomic Energy Community], where she began training to be a computer programmer. In 1969 she and her family moved back to Vienna and she joined the International Atomic Energy Agency [IAEA]. While there, under the direction of Giampaolo Del Bigio, Schmid helped publish the first INIS [International Nuclear Information System] *Atomindex*. In 1975, she moved on to AGRIS [International Information System for the Agricultural Sciences and Technology] where she worked with varying software and helped the fledgling organization to organize and evolve its technological programs. In 2000, she retired, after rising through the organization to become the head of AGRIS Processing. Schmid concludes the interview by discussing briefly her knowledge of AGRIS in its present state and sharing some of the positive experiences she had throughout her career as a computer analyst.

#### **INTERVIEWER**

W. Boyd Rayward is a research professor in the Graduate School of Library and Information Science at the University of Illinois, Urbana-Chamapaign. He turned to librarianship after graduating in English literature from the University of Sydney. He received his Ph.D. from the Graduate Library School at the University of Chicago in 1973. He has held positions in the University of Chicago (where he became Dean of the Graduate Library School). He served as Professor and Head of the School of Information Library and Archive Studies and Dean of the University's Faculty of Professional Studies at the University of New South Wales in Sydney where he is now professor emeritus. He has published two books related to Paul Otlet, Belgian documentalist and internationalist, and a great many articles on history of national and international schemes for the organization and dissemination of information.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 1 Early Interests in Mathematics and Physics Interest in mathematics and physics lead towards a career in teaching. Meet husband at Vienna University. Relocate to Belgium and train to be a computer programmer at Euratom. Return to Vienna and accept position at the International Atomic Energy Agency.
- 2 Computer Programmer for IAEA Work under the supervision of Giampaolo Del Bigio and help publish the first INIS *Atomindex*. Work with incoming INIS data, including checking and production of the INIS master file. Apply retrieval systems, such as IRMS [Information Retrieval and Management System].
- 5 Responsibilities at IAEA Implement photocomposition method to IAEA indexes. Help to create IAEA Thesaurus by studying the first Thesaurus, created by Euratom. Input software and help launch system.
- Transfer to FAO under AGRIS and Early Operational Glitches
   Transfer to AGRIS for personal reasons. Handle the computer processing of the
   AGRIS data. Work on corrections for AGRIS data in Vienna and add numerous
   programs to system. Personally modify software to be multilingual.
- 16 Problems with AGRIS location and Retirement Debate to move AGRIS to Rome. Motivation drops in Vienna at AGRIS headquarters. AGRIS processing unit closes. Retire due to AGRIS management changes.
- 20 Professional Recollections Discuss positive and negative experiences during the time at AGRIS. Thoughts on changes in the information world. Anecdotes on encounters between executives and programmers.
- 24 Index

#### INDEX

#### A

Agricola. See Agricultural Online Access Agricultural Online Access [Agricola], 6-7, 11, 14-15, 19, 21-22 AGRIS. See International Information System for the Agricultural Sciences and Technology AGROVOC. See Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations American Standard Code for Information Interchange [ASCII], 23 Ankara, Turkey, 16 ASCII. See American Standard Code for Information Interchange Assembler programming language, 1, 16 Atomindex. See International Nuclear Information System

### B

Because It's Time Network [BITNET], 14 BITNET. *See* Because It's Time Network Brunenkant, Edward, 6

## С

CAB. *See* Commonwealth Agricultural Bureaux CABI. *See* Commonwealth Agricultural Bureaux International Chepkasov, Anatoly, 11 COBOL. *See* Common Business Oriented Language Cologne, Germany, 19 Common Business Oriented Language [COBOL], 5 Commonwealth Agricultural Bureaux [CAB], 6-7, 11, 21-22 Commonwealth Agricultural Bureaux International [CABI], 7, 12, 19

# D

Del Bigio, Giampaolo, 1-3, 5-6, 11, 23 Dialog programming language, 14 Dragulev, Vassil, 13

## Е

ENDS. *See* European Atomic Energy Community ESA. *See* European Space Agency Euratom. *See* European Atomic Energy Community European Atomic Energy Community [Euratom], 1, 5 European Nuclear Data System [ENDS], 5, 10 European Space Agency [ESA], 14

### F

FAO. See Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations
Flexowriter character set, 3
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations [FAO], 6-8, 10-12, 15, 17-22
Multilingual Agricultural Thesaurus [AGROVOC], 19
Fortran programming language, 1

Frascatti, Italy, 14

### G

Garfield, Eugene, 13 GlobalLink, 17 Gottschalk, Charles, 6 Groenewegen, Hans, 6, 14, 23

# I

IAEA. See International Atomic Energy Agency IBM. See International Business Machines Corporation IDRC. See International Development Research Centre Information Retrieval and Management System [IRMS], 3 INIS. See International Nuclear Information System International Atomic Energy Agency [IAEA], 1-2, 11, 15-17, 23 Safeguards, 17-18 International Business Machines Corporation [IBM], 1, 3, 13 360 Model, 1 1401 Model, 1 1620 Model. 1 7090 Model, 1 International Development Research Centre [IDRC], 10, 21-22 International Information System for the Agricultural Sciences and Technology [AGRIS], 5-17, 19-23 A-4 format, 8 A-5 format, 8 "Green Baby," 8 agricultural thesaurus, 10 List of Participating Centers, 8 International Nuclear Information System [INIS], 1-2, 4-8, 10-11, 13-17, 21-23 Atomindex, 1, 3, 23 Liaison Officer. 8 IRMS. See Information Retrieval and Management System

# K

Kirkgoeze, Remzi, 16-18

## L

Leatherdale, Donald, 10, 21 Lebowitz, Abraham, 11, 20, 22

### Μ

Machine Readable Cataloging [MARC], 4-5, 19 Mangstl, Anton, 7, 16-18, 21 MARC. *See* Machine Readable Cataloging Martinelli, Maria Theresa, 9 "Mother AGRIS," 9 Micro CDS/ISIS database software, 21 Microsoft Corporation, 16 SQL programming language, 16, 18

### Ν

Natlacen, Maria, 17 Nuclear Science Abstracts, 6

## 0

OCR. *See* Optical Character Recognition OPEC. *See* Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries Optical Character Recognition [OCR], 23 Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries [OPEC], 16 Ottawa, Canada, 21

# P

Palo Alto, California, 14 PL/1 programming language, 11, 16

# R

Rome, Italy, 14-19, 22 Ruckenbauer, Elisabeth, 4

# S

Schmid, Helga husband, 1
Science and Technical Information Network [STN], 14
Science Citation Index, 12-13
Siemens AG, 16
SilverPlatter database, 20-21
SPIRS software, 21
SPIRS software. See SilverPlatter database
SQL programming language. See Microsoft Corporation
STAIRS. See Standard Automated Inventory and Referral System
Standard Automated Inventory and Referral System [STAIRS], 13
STN. See Science and Technical Information Network
Sybase Inc., 16

### Т

Time Share Incorporated Network [TYMNET], 14 Todeschini, Claudio, 3, 5, 11-12 TYMNET. *See* Time Share Incorporated Network

## U

United Kingdom Ministry of Agriculture and Forest and Fishery, 12

# V

Van de Graff generator, 1 Vienna University, 1 Vienna, Austria, 1, 3, 9, 11-19

# W

WAICENT. *See* World Agricultural Documentation and Information Woolston, John, 2, 6, 10, 21-23 World Agricultural Documentation and Information [WAICENT], 19

# Ζ

ZADI. *See* Zentralstelle für Agrardokcumentation und Information Zentralstelle für Agrardokcumentation und Information [ZADI], 19 Ziegler, Walter, 16-17